

# Installation Manual CellSens [Ver.1.7.1] IMAGING SOFTWARE

This installation manual is for the Olympus imaging software cellSens and microscope digital camera. To ensure safety, obtain optimum performance and familiarize yourself fully with the installation of this software, we recommend that you study this manual thoroughly before operating the software. Retain this manual in an easily accessible place near a system for future reference.

For research and education

This system has been designed for research and educational purposes.

## CONTENTS

1. IMPORTANT
2. Installing cellSens
2.1. Start of the Installer
2.2. Software activation
2.2.1. What is the purpose of software activation?
2.2.2. Activation procedure
2.2.3. When does software activation take place?
2.2.4. Internet-based software activation
2.2.5. File-based software activation9
2.2.6. Code-based software activation11
2.3. Installation
2.4. Software deactivation
2.4.1. Internet-based deactivation
3. Starting the cellSens software
4. Setting the Microscope
5. Uninstalling cellSens
5.1. Uninstalling software
5.2. Cautions for uninstallation
6. Others

Any copyrights relating to this manual shall belong to OLYMPUS CORPORATION. We at OLYMPUS CORPORATION have tried to make the information contained in this manual as accurate and reliable as possible. Nevertheless, OLYMPUS CORPORATION disclaims any warranty of any kind, whether expressed or implied, as to any matter whatsoever relating to this manual, including without limitation the merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. OLYMPUS CORPORATION will from time to time revise the software described in this manual and reserves the right to make such changes without obligation to notify the purchaser. In no event shall OLYMPUS CORPORATION be liable for any indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages arising out of purchase or use of this manual or the information contained herein.

No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose, without the prior written permission of OLYMPUS CORPORATION.

Microsoft Windows, Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel and Microsoft Access are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation which can be registered in various countries. Adobe and Acrobat are trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated which can be registered in various countries.

© OLYMPUS CORPORATION All rights reserved cellSens1.7\_EN\_01\_rev1 The following symbols are found on this installation manual. Study the meaning of the symbols and always use the equipment in the safest possible manner.



: Indicates the information that this product may not be used if you do not follow this notice.



: Indicates the useful information when operating/maintaining this product.

# **1. IMPORTANT**

This Installation Manual describes the installation procedures of cellSens. For installation procedures of the digital camera to be used in combination with this software, refer to Instruction Manual of the relevant digital camera and Hardware Manual within DVD-ROM of cellSens.

There are 3 types in cellSens.

- Dimension
- Standard
- Entry

\* Options (paid) can be added to this software separately.

This installation manual is for installing [Dimension & Database Option]. When installing the other grades and options, a part of the dialog boxes described in this installation manual is not displayed while installing the software, but all other procedures are the same.



#### Trademark information

Windows is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation, USA. All of the other brand names and product names mentioned in this manual are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

#### Note on Disposal

Be sure to observe your local regulations and rules when disposing of this product.

#### Recommended operating environment

The fact that the recommended operating environment below is met does not necessarily guarantee the availability of all of the operations that are usually available with the PC connection system.

Please refer to the Instruction Manual of each camera for the operation environment unique to the camera to be used.

No.	Торіс	Remark		
1	CPU	Intel Core i5, Intel Core i7, Intel Xeon <sup>®</sup> , (or compatible)		
2	Memory	8 GB recommended (4GB minimum)		
3	HD Space	1 GB hard disk space for installation Recommended for high speed image acquisition: SSD hard disk		
4	Graphic Card	1280x1024 (min. 1024 x768) monitor resolution with 32-bit-video card with separate graphics memory (no integrated graphics processor with shared memory)		
5	Drive	DVD-ROM drive		
6	PC Input Device	minimum 2 button mouse, (recommended: 3 button mouse with wheel), Keyboard		
7	OS	Microsoft <sup>®</sup> Windows <sup>®</sup> 7 Ultimate / Professional (32bit / 64bit) SP1 Microsoft <sup>®</sup> Windows <sup>®</sup> Vista Ultimate / Business (32bit) SP2 Microsoft <sup>®</sup> Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Professional (32bit) SP3		
8	OS Language	Japanese, German, English, Chinese, Russian and all others using the Roman alphabet.		
9	Web Browser	Microsoft Internet Explorer 8.0		

In order to realize the faster image acquisition, it is recommended to meet the following specifications in addition to the recommended operating environment described above.

• CPU : QuadCore is installed.

#### Getting Ready

- 1) When you are using Windows 7 or Vista, an error may occur if PC turns in the hibernation mode during cellSens startup. Please be sure to set PC not to be in hibernation mode.
- 2) The image data may be damaged unexpectedly. Please backup the data on regular base.
- 3) This software must not be used for medical purpose.
- 4) Please note that if the camera cable comes off while the live image is displayed, the live image will not be displayed though the camera cable is connected again. In this case, restart the application with the camera cable being connected.
- 5) The application cannot be started doubly.
- 6) cellSens (Dimension/Standard/Entry) cannot be installed on the same PC.
- 7) Set the PC to be used not to execute the virus scan during processing time lapse, etc. The PC performance may be deteriorated due to the virus scan workload and the accurate results may not be acquired.
- 8) Please refer to the instruction manual of each device for the setup procedures or the operation procedures of other devices (microscopes, etc.).
- 9) Never attempt to delete or rename the folders and files installed by the provided installer software. Otherwise, the software may get unable to be started up.
- 10) When the HDD free space reduces, the data processing speed may slow extremely or errors may occur frequently. To prevent this, delete unnecessary data files frequently.
- 11) Please understand that Olympus shall not be responsible for any loss (destruction) of the data recorded.
- 12) Be sure to create the backup of PC system before installing this software.
- In order to use the report function of cellSens Dimension, either Microsoft Office Word 2003/2007 or Microsoft Word 2010 must be installed.

# 2. Installing cellSens

This section describes the installation procedures using Windows 7. If using Windows Vista or XP, the operating

methods are more or less the same.

# NOTE Cautions for Installation

When installing cellSens, if DP21, etc. is specified as the device to be used, the IEEE1394 device driver is changed to

	F1001 device driver Concerver	by appared IEEE 1001 devices segment he used
THE OF YMPUS SHECHCIEF	E 1.394 NEVICE ANVEL CONSEQUEN	IV Deneral IEEE 1394 Devices cannot be used
and derivin de opeoline lee		

Devices requiring OLYMPUS specific IEEE1394 device driver (I)	OLYMPUS	<ul> <li>DP26</li> <li>DP21</li> <li>BX3 CBH</li> </ul>	• IX3 CBH
Devices requiring general IEEE1394 device driver ( II )	OLYMPUS Olympus Soft Imaging Solutions (OSIS)	DP25     CC12     F-View II     ColorView I     ColorView II     ColorView III	<ul> <li>XM10</li> <li>XC10</li> <li>XC30</li> <li>XC50</li> <li>UC30</li> </ul>
	QImaging	<ul> <li>ColorView IIIU</li> <li>Micro Publisher 3.3 RTV</li> <li>Micro Publisher 3.3 RTV cooled</li> <li>Micro Publisher 5 RTV</li> <li>MicroPublisher 5 RTV cooled</li> <li>Retiga SRV</li> <li>Monochrome Retiga Exi</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>OC50</li> <li>Monochrome QI Click</li> <li>Exi Blue</li> <li>Rolera Thunder</li> <li>Monochrome Exi Aqua</li> <li>Monochrome Retiga 4000 R</li> <li>Monochrome Retiga 4000 RV</li> <li>Monochrome Retiga 2000 R</li> <li>Monochrome Retiga 2000 R</li> </ul>
	Hamamatsu	<ul> <li>Orca-AG</li> <li>Orca-05</li> <li>Orca-ER</li> </ul>	<ul><li>Orca-R2</li><li>Orca-03</li></ul>
	Roper Jenoptik	CoolSnap HQ2     ProgRes C3     ProgRes C5	

When you use devices requiring the driver (I) and devices requiring the driver (II) by connecting both to the same PC, in addition to the PCI board of the IEEE1394 connector for the driver (I) (hereinafter called as PCI board-I), one more PCI board of the IEEE1394 connector for the driver (II) (hereinafter called as PCI board-II) is necessary. And you need to set them up according to procedures as follows.

- 1) Mount PCI board- I to PC. Remove PCI board- II.
- 2) Install cellSens.
- 3) After installation is completed, shutdown PC and plug out the power cable. Then mount PCI board- II to PC.
- 4) Connect the device requiring the driver (I) to the connector of PCI board- I and the device requiring the driver (II) to the connector of PCI board- II respectively.
- \* If the IEEE1394 connector has already been mounted to PC and the PCI board cannot be removed, set up as above by using that PCI board as PCI board-I.
- \* Please refer to P.24 for procedures to update the IEEE1394 device driver.

## 2.1. Start of the Installer

Prepare following items for installation.

- DVD-ROM
- · Certificate describing the main license key
- Certificate describing the option license key
   (only when using the option)
- Storage media, e.g. USB memory, etc.
   (only if PC to install cellSens cannot be connected to Internet.)
- 1) Start Windows 7. (Log on with the Computer Administrator account.)
- 2) Insert the DVD-ROM into the DVD-ROM drive.
- When the [AutoPlay] window appears, click on [Runsetup.exe].



- 4) When the [User Account Control] window appears,
  - click [Yes] button.



5) When the [InstallShield Wizard] window appears, click [Install] button.

Software -	Software - InstallShield Wizard				
2	Software requires the following items to be installed on your computer. Click Install to begin installing these requirements.				
Status	Requirement				
Pending	Microsoft .NET Framework 4.0 Full				
	Instal				

\* After installation of Microsoft .Net Framework 4.0 full, you may be required to restart Windows. In this case, please restart and double-click cellSens DVD-ROM icon in [Computer] in Start menu.

Go to 2.2. Software activation

## 2.2. Software activation

#### 2.2.1. What is the purpose of software activation?

Software activation is the process to unlock the software you are about to install or have already installed for perpetual use. Activating the licenses by electronic means now replaces the hardware dongle that in former times was required to protect the software against unauthorized use.

Normally, the licenses are activated at the beginning of the software installation. However, you can also activate your software retroactively, within 30 days after the installation at the latest. When the software activation has been completed successfully, you possess an activated software license that is registered on Olympus' central activation server.

#### 2.2.2. Activation procedure

How the activation is carried out depends on whether an Internet connection can be made or not, and from which PC. Regardless of the activation scenario used, basically always the same data is exchanged between the client PC and the activation server. These data do not contain any personal information.

There are three scenarios:

#### 1. Internet-based activation (P.8)

If the PC on which the software will run has an Internet connection, the activation automatically takes place via Internet.

#### 2. File-based activation (P.9)

If the PC on which the software will run has no Internet connection, the activation takes place via another PC that has an Internet connection.

#### 3. Code-based activation (P.11)

Alternatively the activation can be done via transferring and entering character codes. You can do this via your mobile device (for example, Smartphone) or by calling the Activation hotline. Because of the very long codes that must be entered, only choose this scenario when absolutely no PC with internet connection is available nearby.



#### Basic data exchange during software activation

With the internet-based activation scenario, a RAF file (request activation file) is automatically sent to the Olympus' central activation server via Internet. This server, provided that the license could be identified and activated, automatically sends back a PAF file (processed activation file).

With the file-based activation scenario, the RAF files are transferred too. However, sending the files is done manually in this scenario via upload and download from the activation server

With the code-based activation scenario, character codes are exchanged, for example by telephone with the Activation hotline.

#### The importance of the license key

Any cellSens software installation always requires entering license keys.

The license key can be found on the license certificate that was delivered with your software.



Illustration of a license certificate. The license key that is needed for software installation is.surrouneded in an oval.

During activation the activation server checks whether the license is valid. If the license is valid, the activation server sends back a PAF file. With PCs that have an Internet connection, this process runs automatically and is normally finished within seconds.

You are given exactly one license key for your software. If you also purchased specialized software extensions, called Solutions, you have been given a separate license certificate with another license key for each Solution. You must enter these license keys as well during installation.

#### 2.2.3. When does software activation take place?

Having installed the software does not mean that it is automatically activated. If, during software installation, you chose to activate the software later, you must do this within 30 days of installation because you won't be able to use the software afterwards without activation. Until you complete the activation, you are prompted to do so every day during this term.

Select the Help > Activate licenses... command to activate your software licenses retroactively. This command is only available if your licenses have not been activated yet.

#### 2.2.4. Internet-based software activation

Imaging Software - Setup	EBX
Provide license keys	Della
To install your product on this computer, you need to provide the setup with license keys you purchased.	
Put licenses on this computer	
Entre Learna kay DVDFM KSH3B - 340xR9 30D bys cellifiers 	
sound for second second internation	
Alternatively, bad loanse kays from file: Begwink	
O Search for floating license server.	
< <u>Back</u> Net >	Cancel

- In the Provide license keys dialog box that is displayed now, enter the license key that is given on the license certificate.
  - \* If you have more license keys (for example, for Solutions), enter all of them.
- 2) Click the Next > button.

Activate licenses			
fou will need to activate your licenses within 30 days. //ould you like to activate now?			
Activate now (recommended)			
Activate later i			
			_
	 < Back	Next >	Cancel



- In the Activate licenses dialog box that is displayed now, do not change the preset Activate now (recommended) option and click the Next button.
- 4) In the Contact activation server dialog box, click the Contact Server button.
  - \* The PC will now contact the activation server and data will be exchanged. This occurs in the background. This can take several seconds. Do not interrupt this process if possible!
  - \* When the dialog box displayed on the left-hand side is displayed, your software has been activated successfully.
- 5) Click the Next button to continue the software installation.

#### 2.2.5. File-based software activation

If the PC where cellSens is to be used has <u>no</u> Internet connection, the activation can be done via another PC that has an Internet connection.

To do so, you start the software installation on the first PC and then use a second PC (with an Internet connection) for data exchange with the Olympus' central activation server. Have your license certificate at hand.

Imaging Software - Setup	. BX
Provide license keys	Desa
To install your product on this computer, you need to provide the setup with license keys you purchased.	
Pyt licenses on this computer	
Enter license key. BVEFM - FSH3B - (3AV/R3 30Days celSens 	
LEVIN Roy EXCELSED CON	
Alternatively, load license keys from Nex	
BIQNIE	
O Search for floating license server.	
(Book	Next> Cancel

sens Dimension 1.7 - Setup		[	35
du automatic activation was not norsible, because duest o	contact to activation server failed		- (3
ani u tanati ani ulim la autoria De visuele eser			
sinacionalic activation by exchanging nes via view page			
Step 1: Save Request File	r to computer with internet connection.		
Step 2: Open web page and upload request file: http://	/www.olympus-sis.com/file-activation/		
Step 3: Receive processed file from web page and tran	sfer back to this computer.		
Step 4: Load Processed File and click 'Next' to	complete activation.		
Avoid this option: Fully manual activation in case file exc	hange is not possible at all with this computer		

- In the Provide license keys dialog box that is displayed now, enter the license key that is given on the license certificate.
  - \* If you have more license keys (for example, for Solutions), enter all of them.
- 2) Click the Next > button.
- In the Activate licenses dialog box that is displayed now, do not change the preset Activate now (recommended) option and click the Next button.
- 4) In the Contact activation server dialog box, click the Contact Server button.
  - \* The PC now tries to contact the activation server. Due to the fact that no contact can be made, the dialog box shown on the left-hand side is displayed:
- 5) To do so, click the Save Request File... button. Save the request file in a way that allows you to access it from the second PC with the Internet connection (for example on a network drive or USB stick).
  - \* The request file has the RAF file name extension, for "request activation file".
- Change over to the PC with Internet connection, open an Internet browser and enter the following internet address.

#### http://www.olympus-sis.com/file-activation/.

\* You will see the following website:

	2. EOX	Activate Licenses	×	ឃីង
Your Vision, Our Future				
			OLYMPUS SOF	T IMAGING SOLUTIONS GM
Activate Licenses				
● English ● Deutsch ● Français ● 日本語 ● 中文				
Switch to mobile site				
Welcome to the license activation. You are here because your	imaging software asked	you to save an *.raf file,	to go to this p	age and upload the
tile. If your imaging software did not show such a dialog or does not	t ask for activation, then	you do not need to procee	d here.	
Upload request file from your portable storage medium to the v	veb page:			
C:\Temp\Test_01.raf Browse Upload				

cellSens Dimension 1.7 - Setup	
Exchange files for activation	Dalla -
Fully automatic activation was not possible, because direct contact to activation server failed.	
Semi-automatic activation by exchanging files via web page:	
Step 1: Save Request File	
Step 2: Open web page and upload request file: http://www.olympus-sis.com/lile-activation/	
Step 3: Receive processed file from web page and transfer back to this computer.	
Step 4: Load Processed File and click: Next to complete activation.	
Avoid this option: Fully manual activation in case life exchange is not possible at all with this computer	
(Back News)	Cancel

cellSens Dimension 1.7.0 - Setup Activation successful		
Your licenses were successfully activated		
	(Zurice	

- 7) If necessary, you can change the website language.
- Click the Browse... button and find the request file. Then click the Upload > button.
  - \* The website will now be updated. This may take several seconds.
- Click the Download Processed File... button. Save the processed file in a way that allows you to access it from the PC where cell Sens is being installed (for example on a network drive or USB stick).
  - \* The processed file has the PAF file name extension, for "processed activation file".
  - \* After completing in downloading the processed file, you can perform User Registration. After User Registration is completed, you can receive the product information via your E-mail. Click [Register as User] button to move to the user registration page. Enter the required items in the form.

10)Close the Internet browser again.

- 11)Change back to the PC where cellSens is being installed.
- 12)In the Exchange files for activation dialog box that should still be on display, click the Load Processed File... button. Browse to the directory in which the processed file has been saved.
  - \* As soon as the processed file has been loaded, the Next button becomes active.
  - \* When the dialog box displayed on the left-hand side is displayed, your software has been activated successfully.
- 13)Click the Next button to continue the software installation.

#### 2.2.6. Code-based software activation

If the PC where your software is installed has no Internet connection and if no other PC with an Internet connection is available either, the activation can be done via transferring and entering character codes.

You can do this via your mobile device (for example, Smartphone) or by calling the Activation hotline.

Because of the very long codes that must be entered, only choose this scenario when absolutely no PC with internet connection is available nearby.

When activating the software via telephone, it is a good idea to have the telephone next to the PC on which you want to activate the software. Then you can read aloud Code A to the Customer Support Center employee and directly enter the newly created Code B that will be given to you.



tschange files for activation	
Fully automatic activation was not possible, because direct contact to activation server failed.	
Semi-automatic activation by exchanging files via web page:	
Step 1: Save Request File	
Step 2: Open web page and upfood request Re: http://www.olympus-sis.com/iTe-activation/	
Step 3. Receive processed file from web page and transfer back to this computer.	
Step 4: Load Processed File and click 'Next' to complete activation.	
1912/cod tric color: Fuly nerval schröden in cale Ne echange is nö possible at äl viih his computed []]	
< <u>B</u> ack Next >	Cancel

- In the Provide license keys dialog box that is displayed now, enter the license key that is given on the license certificate.
  - \* If you have more license keys (for example, for Solutions), enter all of them.
- 2) Click the Next > button.
- In the Activate licenses dialog box that is displayed now, do not change the preset Activate now (recommended) option and click the Next button.
- 4) In the Contact activation server dialog box, click the Contact Server button.
  - \* The PC now tries to contact the activation server. Due to the fact that no contact can be made, the dialog box shown on the left-hand side is displayed:
- Select the Avoid this option: Fully manual activation in case file exchange is not possible at all with this computer check box.
- 6) Click the Next > button.

\* The following dialog box opens.

	censes manually						Des
ichange o	odes for each license	via phone or mobile of	sevice.				
Step 1:	Open the web page Or call the activation	http://www.ohmp hpotine:	us-eis.com/code-activ	ation/			
	Office Location	Phone Number	Comment		-		
	Europe: Asia / Paofic: Australia:	+49 (251) 79800-0 +65 6777 7898 +61 (8) 8250-3657	7		-		
Step 2	Type code A from th	e list below (ine with	the button Code B) in	to the web page.			
Q	step 2. Type dode A non menta below pre what he down in code by non mereb page.						
GIED 2.	m 4 True code 8 in the occustor claim						
Step 4:	Type code B in the	i back to this setup, a occurring dialog.	nd click the button "Co	de B'.			
Step 4: Step 5:	Type code B in the Repeat steps 2 and	i back to this setup, a occurring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd click the button "Co license listed below.	de B'.			
Step 4: Step 5:	Type code B in the Repeat steps 2 and	) back to this setup, a occurring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd click the button 'Co Ilcense listed below.	de B'.			
Step 4: Step 5:	Type code 8 in the Repeat steps 2 and	i back to this setup, a occurring dialog. 3 for each and every	Ilcense listed below.	de B'.			Activation
Step 5: Step 5: Licenses:	Type code B in the Repeat steps 2 and	i back to this setup, a occurring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd olick the button 'Co Ilicense listed below. Code A	de B'.			Activation
Step 5: Step 5: Licenses:	Type code B in the Repeat steps 2 and	i beck to this setup, a coccuring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd click the button 'Co Ilcense listed below. Code A	de B'.			Activation Code 8
Step 5: Step 5: Licenses	Type code B in the Repeat steps 2 and	i back to this setup, a occuring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd click the button 'Co ' license listed below. Code A	de B'.			Activation [Code B]
Step 5: Step 5: Licenses	Type code B in the Repeat steps 2 and	i back to this setup, a occurring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd click the button 'Co 'Icense listed below. Code A	de E'.			Activation
Step 3. Step 4: Step 5: Licenses:	Type code 8 in the Repeat steps 2 and	i back to this setup, a cocurring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd alick the button 'Co license listed below.	de B'.			Activation
Step 3. Step 4: Step 5: Ucenses	Type code 8 in the r Repeat steps 2 and	back to this edup, a occurring dialog. 3 for each and every	nd dick the button 'Co	de B'.			Activation

Type Code B	×
Type the received code for the license 'dicensename>'.	
Çode B:	
Input format of code B: 1234 - 12345678 - 1234 - 12345678	
	OK Cancel

cellSens Dimension 1.7.0 - Setup Activation successful	
Your licenses were successfully adhyated	

- Call the Activation hotline during local office hours. The dialog box displays the telephone number that is valid for your location.
  - \* The customer will bear the costs of the telephone call.
- Inform the Customer Support Center employee that you would like to activate a software license by telephone.
- 9) Read aloud Code A.
  - \* Alternatively, you can use your mobile device (for example, Smartphone) and open this website http://www.olympus-sis.com/code-activation/. On this website, you can enter Code A yourself and then select Send.
- 10)When you received Code B, click the Code B... button in the Activate licenses manually dialog box.
  - \* The Type Code B dialog box opens.

11)Enter Code B and click the OK button.

- 12) If you have more than one license, repeat the steps 10)to 12) until you finish to enter Code B for all your licenses.
- 13)In the Activate licenses manually dialog box, click the Next button.
- 14)When the dialog box displayed on the left-hand side is displayed, your software has been activated successfully. Click the Next button to continue the software installation.

## 2.3. Installation

 Read the displayed Licensing Agreement, check [Yes, I accept all the terms of the Licensing Agreement.] and then click the [Next] button.



2) Select the language (English, Japanese, Chinese, German and Russian) and click the [Next] button.



 The [Choose Destination Location] window appears. If you want to change the destination location, click the [Browse] button to find a new location. Click the [Next] button.

If a dot "." is included in the name of the folder selected as the destination to install, the failure may occur in some functions. Be sure to select the folder whose name does not include a dot ".".

cellSens Dimension 1.7 (build 10125) Setur	p 🔀
Choose Destination Location Select folder where setup will install files.	
Please enter the location where you would folder name or click the Browse button to f	f like to install the program. You may type a new find a new location.
C:\Program Files\cellSens Dimension\	
	Biowse
nstallShield	
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext> Cancel

 The [Microscope Controller Selection] window appears. Select the microscope, and click the [Next] button. If there are no microscopes in the list, click on the [Next] button.

In case of installing [Entry], this window won't be displayed.

Microscope Controller Selection	al
Choose a microscope controller	
Choose the manufacturer of the microscop Then choose a microscope controller from	be controller from the left list. The right list.
Manufacturer	Microscope controller
Olympus Other Manufacturers	BX FCB
Vincent Associates	BX REMCB
	✓B×3 CBM/CBS
	<b>₩</b> K FCB
	VIX UCB
	<►
tallShield	

#### When you use BX3 CBH or IX3 CBH

When [BX3 CBH] or [IX3 CBH] has been checked, the dialog box shown below appears. Click the [OK] button to close the box and click the [Next] button shown above.



\* If you are using BX3 CBH / IX3 CBH, the IEEE1394 device driver must be changed to the IEEE1394 device driver specialized for Olympus after installation. Refer to 4.Setting the Microscope (p.20) for details.

- 5) The [Stage Selection] window appears. Select the stage, and click the [Next] button. If there are no stages in the list, click the [Next] button.
  - \* If the [Multi Position Option] is not purchased, this window won't be displayed.



#### When you use BX3 SSUCB

If you connect BX3 SSUCB to BX3 CBH / IX3 CBH, select [BX3 SSUCB]. If you connect BX3 SSUCB to the PC, select [BX3 SSUCB (serial)].

When [BX3 SSUCB] has been checked, the window same as the one when [BX3 CBH] or [IX3 CBH] is checked in selecting the microscope controller in 4) is displayed. Click the [OK] button to close the box and click the [Next] button shown above.

6) The [Image Source Selection] window appears. Select the device, and click the [Next] button.



When you use DP26 or DP21

When [DP26] or [DP21] has been checked, the window same as the one when [BX3 CBH] or [IX3 CBH] is checked in selecting the microscope controller in 4) is displayed. Click the [OK] button to close the box and click the [Next] button shown above.

#### When you use DP73 or DP73WDR

When [DP73] or [DP73WDR] is used, it is recommended to use the PC on which 64bitOS is mounted. If you use the PC on which 32bitOS is mounted, consult with OLYMPUS.

- The [Other Devices Selection] window appears. Select the device, and click the [Next] button. If there are no devices in the list, click the [Next] button.
- \* When installing [Standard] or [Entry], this window won't be displayed.



- The [Database] window appears. Check [Install local database server] and then click the [Next] button.
- \* If the [Database Option] is not purchased, it won't be displayed.



- 9) The [Configure SQLServer 2005 Express] window appears. Enter the system administrator password, and then click the [Next] button.
- \* The password is consisted of 8 to 128 characters long and contains characters from 3 of 4 categories. Latin uppercase letters (A-Z)
  - Latin lowercase letters (a-z)
  - Base 10 digits (0 through 9)
- Non-alphanumeric characters: "!", "\$", "#", or "%".
- \* If the [Database Option] is not purchased, it won't be displayed.

cellSens Dimension 1.7 (build 10174) Setup	×
Configure SQL Server 2005 Express	es L
Please enter system administrator password.	
Please enter a strong system administrator password.	
System Administrator Password	
Password:	×
Repeat Password:	
Strong password is: 8 to 128 characters long and contains characters from 3 of 4 categories (Ar2) Latin upercase letters (Ar2) Base 10 digits (0 through 9) Non-alphanumeric characters: "1", "\$", "#", or "%" InstallShield < Back	gories: Next > Cancel

10)The [NetCam server] window appears. Check [Yes] and then click the [Next] button.



11)If the NetCam function has been installed in the PC, the window below may appear. In case of it, click the [Ignore] button.



12)The [Select Additional Tasks] window appears. Check the task to be used and click the [Next] button.

Select Additional Tasks Which additional tasks should be performed?	
Select the additional tasks you would like Setup to perfor	m, then click Next.
Add jcon to the desktop	
Add manuals shortcut to the desktop	
nstallShield	
< Bac	k Next > Cancel

13)The [Start Copying Files] window appears. Click the [Next] button.

cellSens Dimension 1.7 (build 10125) Setup	×
Start Copying Files Review settings before copying files.	P
Setup has enough information to start copying the pro- change any settings, click Back. If you are satisfied w copying files.	gram files. If you want to review or th the settings, click Next to begin
InstallShield	

14) If the Microsoft Words has not been installed in the PC, the below window appears. To click the [OK] button commands the PC to restart to install cellSens. In this case, you cannot use the report function of cellSens.

If you want to use this function, you need to install Microsoft Word (2003, 2007, or 2010). Be sure to install Microsoft Word (2003, 2007, or 2010) after completing in installing cellSens, and run the WordReportDiagnostics.exe refer to below window.



15)Click the [Install] button if the window below



16)Click the [Install this driver software anyway] if the window below appears.



17)The window below appears. Tick [Yes, I want to restart my computer now.] or [No, I will restart my computer later.] and click the [Finish] button.

cellSens Dimension 1.7 (build 1)	01/4) Setup
	InstallShield Wizard Complete The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed cellSens Dimension. Before you can use the program, you must restart your computer.
	< Back Finish Cancel

18)When the installation is complete, the window below appears Click the [Finish] button.

a	μh	Jea	IS.	κι	ne	usnj	bu

cellSens Dimension 1.7 (build 1	0174) Setup
	InstallShield Wizard Complete Setup has finished installing 'cellSens Dimension' on your computer.
	< <u>B</u> ack Finish Cancel

## 2.4. Software deactivation

You must deactivate the software if you want to use the same cellSens software on a different PC (for example because the old PC will be disposed of) and you would like to continue using the software license. Deactivation of your software licenses is always done via the Olympus' central activation server, too. It is important that the software license receives the "deactivated" status on this server. Only then can this license be activated again on another PC.

Deactivate the software before you dispose of the PC, reformat the hard drive or remove it from service by any other means! Don't worry if the new PC is not yet available, because you can do the reactivation of the software at any later point in time.

Just like activation, also the way the deactivation is carried out depends on whether an Internet connection can be made or not, and from which PC. Regardless of the deactivation scenario used, basically always the same data is exchanged between the client PC and the activation server. These data do not contain any personal information. The same scenarios as with the activation apply:

#### 1. Internet-based deactivation

If the PC on which the software will run has an Internet connection, the deactivation automatically takes place via Internet.

#### 2. File-based deactivation

If the PC on which the software will run has <u>no</u> Internet connection, the deactivation takes place via another PC that has an Internet connection.

This deactivation scenario requires an additional step: One additional file must be uploaded onto the Olympus' central activation server: the confirmation file that contains the information that the deactivation was successful. This software license will only get the "deactivated" status on the activation server after you uploaded this additional file.

#### 3. Code-based deactivation

If you activated the software via transferring and entering character codes (either by using your mobile device (for example, Smartphone) or by telephone via the Activation hotline), deactivation must be done code-based, too.



 confirmation activation file (only with file-based deactivation)

#### Basic data exchange during software deactivation

With the **first** deactivation scenario, the RAF file (request activation file) and the PAF file (processed activation file) are automatically exchanged between PC and the Olympus' central activation server via Internet.

With the **second** deactivation scenario, the same files are transferred. However, sending the files is done manually in this scenario via upload and download from the activation server. When the code-based deactivation is used, the client must save and upload another file at the end of the deactivation procedure, the CAF file (confirmation activation file).

With the third deactivation scenario, character codes are exchanged, for example by telephone with the Activation hotline.

#### 2.4.1. Internet-based deactivation

Select action	
Setup offers reveral possible actions for the current situation on your computer.	
O Update or upgrade, or add solution 👔	
O Uninstall imaging software i	
O/Deactivate licenses on this computer 1	
(gao: <u>Reit</u> ) Lander	

cellS Sel	iens Dimensii lect licenses	on - Setup				
Ple	ase select those enses:	licenses that you want to deacting	vate and remove from this com	puter.		
	Deactivate	Product				
	E Cartonale	cellSens Dimension 1.7				
Es.	ielect al Ck	ser all				
				-		
				< Back	Next >	Cancel



- Insert the DVD-ROM with the software that you want to uninstall into the DVD-ROM drive.
- 2) In the Select action dialog box, select the Deactivate licenses on this computer option.
- 3) Click the Next > button.
- In the Contact activation server dialog box, click the Contact Server button.
  - \* The PC now contacts the activation server and tries to find the software license that you want to deactivate. This can take several seconds. Do not interrupt this process if possible!
- 5) The Select licenses dialog box is shown. Select the licenses that you want to deactivate.
- 6) Click the Next > button.

- \* When deactivation was successful, you will receive a message that your software license has been deactivated.
- Basically, the file-based and code-based deactivation is very similar to the procedure of the activation.
- \* If you perform the file-based deactivation, the confirmation file must be uploaded to the activation server after completing the deactivation. Please enter the following address and access the activation server.

http://www.olympus-sis.com/file-deactivation/

\* After completing deactivation, the License keys.lkf file will be created on the desktop. This file can be used when installing the software next time. You can load the license key by loading the License keys.lkf from [Browse (O)] in the Provide license keys dialog box

## 3. Starting the cellSens software

When cellSens starts up after installation and activation have been completed, you will only need to initialize the first time only. Please initialize according to the following procedures. The initialization will not be displayed after the initial startup. The contents defined during initialization can be changed after cellSens starts up.

- 1) Connect the camera to be used with your PC.
- 2) Start cellSens.
- If you agree with the [OLYMPUS End-User License Agreement], select [I accept the terms in the license agreement.] and click the [Continue] button. (First

d-User License Agreement	×
To continue, you must accept the terms of the End-User License Agreement. To accept the agreement, dick the check box below.	
OLYMPUS End-User License Agreement	-
IMPORTANT: CAREFULLY READ ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT BELOW BEFORE USING THE SOFTWARE.	=
THIS IS A VALID AND LEGALLY ENFORECEABLE AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU (EITHER AN INDIVIDUAL OR A SINGLE ENTITY) AND OLYMPUS CORPORATION ("OLYMPUS"). THE SOFTWARE INCLUDES OLYMPUS" COMPUTER PROGRAM, ASSOCIATED PRINTED MATERIALS, DATA AND INFORMATION, WHICH ARE PROVIDED BY A VARIOUS WAY INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PREINSTALLING, THROUGH FLOPPY DISKS OR CD-ROM OR NETWORK.	
BY INSTALLING, COPYING, DOWNLOADING, ACCESSING OR OTHERWISE USING THE SOFTWARE, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.	
1. Software	Ŧ
$\boxed{V}$ I accept the terms in the license agreement.	

4) The [Quick Device Setup] dialog box will appear, select a camera to use from the [Camera] list. In a same manner, select the microscope or the control box in use from the [Microscope (M)] list, and select the serial port in use from [Interface]. Click [OK]



5) When the [Device List] dialog box appears, select the devices used and click the [OK] button.

The second secon	Convers j. 0077 W Conversion (Conversion)	
recorder from the state of the	Conserve 1         Workscope         Reflected light path         Path           Conserve 1         C0772         W         Safe (Mt)         W	
Immera         // Morsoccave         Reflected light path           Fart:         Fart:           Immera         1:         0773         w         Sixe (whr)         w           mera         7:         mera         v         Sixe (whr)         w	Camera (Microscope (Reflected light put) (Transmitted light put) Part: Camera () (0773 () Side (laft) ()	
Pert: 2mmen 2: 0073 ₩ 356 (oht) ₩ mere 2: 0073 ₩	Camera (). 0973 W Side (left) M	
amera 1: DP73 w Side (left) w	Camera 1: DP73 w Side (left) w	
amera 2: Not used		
	Camera 2: Not used w	
lamera 3: Not used 🖌 🗸	Camera 3: Not used 🗸 🗸	
	Camera 4: Not used 🗸	
	wrag: Not used 🛛	

#### When you use DP73

There are 2 types.

• DP73

• DP73WDR (Correction for wide dynamic range) Select the image device from the above alternatives. If the proper device is not selected, the correction process for the wide dynamic range of DP73WDR does not function.

 \* If devices are not correctly connected, the [Device Settings] dialog box will appear. If is attached to the device icon, the device cannot be controlled. Click the [OK] button and close this dialog box.
 Check if the cables are correctly connected and verify if the driver is correctly working and then,

#### restart cellSens.



# 4. Setting the Microscope

#### Device driver

When the cellSens is used with the microscope (BX63 or IX83), it is necessary to change the IEEE1394 device driver to the OLYMPUS specific IEEE1394 device driver. Change the IEEE1394 device driver by the following procedure after the cellSens is installed.

The general IEEE1394 device driver can not be used after it is changed to the OLYMPUS specific IEEE1394 device driver. Refer to the P.24, if you use the general IEEE1394 device driver.

😗 User	r Account Control	×			
	Do you want unknown pub	to allow the following program from an lisher to make changes to this computer?			
	Program name: Publisher: File origin:	DP1394Inst.exe <b>Unknown</b> Hard drive on this computer			
💌 si	Show details				
		Change when these notifications appear			
→- Windo	ows Security				
→ Windo Would	ows Security I you like to instal	I this device software?			
	ows Security I you like to instai Name: OLYMPUS C Publisher: OLYMPU	II this device software? ORPORATION 1394 Bus Host Contro S CORPORATION			
Window Would	ows Security d you like to instal Name: OLYMPUS C Publisher: OLYMPU ways trust software fror RPORATION".	Il this device software? ORPORATION 1394 Bus Host Contro S CORPORATION n *OLYMPUS			

- 1) Insert the DVD-ROM into the DVD-ROM drive.
- 2) Run the file "DP2x\_Installer.exe" in attached DVD. •Windows 32bit

DVD drive:\32bit\Support\Devices\Olympus\DP2x ·Windows 64bit

DVD drive:\64bit\Support\Devices\Olympus\DP2x

- When the [User Account Control] window appears, click [Yes].
- When the [Windows Security] window appears, click [Install]. Now the change of device driver is completed.

#### Starting BX63

When operating the intelligent microscope (BX63) with cellSens, start BX63 according to the following procedures, and set the full operation mode to start cellSens. Please refer to Instruction Manuals of BX63 and BX3-CBH for connecting BX63 to PC.









- Check whether each device .such as BX63, PC or digital camera for microscope is properly connected.
- Start Windows 7. (Log on with the Computer Administrator account.)
- If you are using the scanning stage with ultrasonic, set the main switch of its control box to " | " (ON).
- Set the main switch of the BX3-CBH control box to "|" (ON).
- 5) Set the main switch on the rear panel of the touch panel controller to ON.
- When the [MENU] window (Fig.1) appears, tap the Full Operation button ①.
- When the full operation mode window (Fig.2) appears, start cellSens.
- \* When starting BX63 for the first time or when changing units connected to the microscope, the system setting must be performed. For the system setting procedures, please refer to BX 63 Instruction Manual and Help in Touch Panel window.
- \* If you have been using the BX63 microscope as a standalone microscope and you want to use it in combination with a PC, turn OFF all devices of the BX63 system and follow the procedure described above to restart the system.

#### Starting IX83

When operating the research inverted microscope (IX83) with cellSens, start IX83 according to the following procedures, and then start cellSens. Please refer to Instruction Manuals of IX83 and IX3-CBH for connecting IX83 to PC.

Ē



> ESCAPE SET START



- 1) Check whether each device .such as IX83, PC or digital camera for microscope is properly connected.
- 2) Start Windows 7. (Log on with the Computer Administrator account.)
- 3) If you are using the scanning stage with ultrasonic, set the main switch of its control box for scanning stage with ultrasonic to " | " (ON).
- 4) If you are using the control box for fast filter wheel and shutter, set the main switch of its control box for fast filter wheel and shutter to " | " (ON).
- 5) Set the main switch of the IX3-CBH control box to "|" (ON).
- 6) Set the main switch on the rear panel of the touch panel controller to ON.
- 7) Start cellSens.
- \* Be sure to start cellSens while the menu window (Fig.3) is displayed on Touch Panel Controller or while the operation window (Fig.4) is displayed by tapping the [Start Operation] button<sup>(2)</sup> on the menu window.
- \* If you start IX83 for the first time or if you change the unit connected to the microscope, you need to perform the system setting. The system setting can be performed either by Touch Panel Controller or cellSens. For setting procedures, refer to IX83 Instruction Manual, Help of Touch Panel Controller or Help of cellSens.
- \* If you have been using the IX83 microscope as a standalone microscope and you want to use it in combination with a PC, turn OFF all devices of the IX83 system and follow the procedure described above to restart the system.
- \* If the continuous focus mode is in process on the operation window of touch panel controller, be sure to close the continuous focus mode before starting cellSens.

# 5. Uninstalling cellSens

## 5.1. Uninstalling software

This section describes the uninstallation procedures.

- 1) Start Windows 7. (Log on with the Computer Administrator account.)
- 2) Insert the DVD-ROM into the DVD-ROM drive.
- 3) When the [AutoPlay] window appears, click on





4) When the [User Account Control] window appears,





5) When the [Select action] window appears, check [Uninstall imaging software] and click [Next] button.



6) When the [Optionally deactivate licenses] window appears, check [Deactivate licenses (recommended)] and click [Next] button.

IlSens Dimension - Setup	
Optionally deactivate licenses	
Do you want to deactivate your purchased licenses together with uninstalling the imaging software?	
Deactivate licenses (recommended)	
Uninstall without deactivation	
< <u>B</u> ack <u>b</u> e	ot.> Cancel

- \* The uninstallation can be performed without deactivating the license, but please note that the activation cannot be performed if cellSens is installed on other PCs.
- Perform the deactivation. Refer to 2.4 Software deactivation (P.17) for detail procedures.
- 8) The uninstallation starts after completing the deactivation.
- 9) When the activation is complete, the window below appears. Click [Finish] button.

cellsens Dimension 1.7 (build 1	UT74) Setup
	U141 Setup InstallShield Wizard Complete Setup has finished removing 'cellSens Dimension' from your computer.
	Cancel

## 5.2. Cautions for uninstallation

When installing cellSens, if DP26, etc. is specified as the device to use, the 1394 driver will be changed to the exclusive driver for OLYMPUS. However, <u>when cellSens is uninstalled</u>, the 1394 driver will not be uninstalled. Therefore, general IEEE1394 device cannot be used. If you want to use general IEEE1394 device than DP26, etc. update the driver software according to the following procedures.

The driver software can be updated even if cellSens has not been uninstalled. As general IEEE1394 device is used, it is also possible to change only 1394 driver temporarily and update to the exclusive driver for OLYMPUS again without uninstalling cellSens.

This section describes the installation procedures using Windows 7. If using Windows Vista or XP, the operating methods are more or less the same.

#### Installation of general 1394 driver

- 1) Open the [start] menu.
- 2) Right-click [Computer] in the start menu.
- 3) Select [Properties] from the displayed menu.



4) Click [Device Manager] located at the upper left

#### side of the dialog box.



### 5) Right-click [OLYMPUS(R) MICROSCOPE 1394 DIGITAL CAMERA SYSTEM] under [1394 Bus Host Controllers], and click [Update Driver Software] from the displayed menu.



6) Click [Search automatically for updated driver

software] in the displayed menu.



7) General driver is installed.



#### Installation of 1394 device driver for OLYMPUS

- 1) Open the device manger according to the same procedures described in 1)-4) above.
- Right-click the device positioned under [1394 bus host controller], and click [Update the driver software]. The device name depends on the PC



3) Click [Browse my computer for driver software] in the displayed menu.

😡 📱 Update Driver Software - Texas Instruments 1394 OHCI Compliant Host Controller	×
How do you want to search for driver software?	
Search automatically for updated driver software Windows will search your computer and the Internet for the latest driver software for your device, unless you've disabled this feature in your device installation settings.	
Browse my computer for driver software Locate and install driver software manually.	
	Cancel

4) Click [Let me pick from a list of device drivers on

my computer] in the displayed menu.



Update Driver Software - OLYMPUS(R) MICROSCOPE 1394 DIGITAL CAMERA SYSTEM
Windows has successfully updated your driver software
Windows has finished installing the driver software for this device:
OLYMPUS(R) MICROSCOPE 1394 DIGITAL CAMERA SYSTEM

6) 1394 device driver for DP26 is installed.

5) Select [OLYMPUS(R) MICROSCOPE 1394 DIGITAL CAMERA SYSTEM], and click the



# 6. Others

#### Update of software (Only using DP2-BSW)

In order to install cellSens to a PC where DP2-BSW has been installed, an update installation process will be performed. The shortcut name will not be updated by performing the update, but it is possible to startup the software as the destination to be linked has been modified.

#### Documents

The maximum number of documents (acquired images, etc.) which can be opened by cellSens at a time is up to 150.

# OLYMPUS

#### Manufactured by **OLYMPUS CORPORATION**

Shinjuku Monolith, 3-1, Nishi Shinjuku 2-chome, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, Japan

Distributed by

#### **OLYMPUS EUROPA HOLDING GMBH**

Wendenstrasse 14-18,20097 Hamburg, Germany **OLYMPUS AMERICA INC.** 3500 Corporate Parkway, Center Valley, Pennsylvania 18034-0610, U.S.A. **OLYMPUS SINGAPORE PTE LTD** 491B River Valley Road #12-01/04 Valley Point Office Tower, Singapore 248373 **OLYMPUS AUSTRALIA PTY LTD** 31 Gilby Road, Mount Waverley, VIC., 3149, Melbourne, Australia **OLYMPUS LATIN AMERICA, INC.** 

5301 Blue Lagoon Drive, Suite 290 Miami, FL 33126, U.S.A.

#### Distributor

Tengrant Inc. Building 1,704/1199 No. Xing Mei Road, Shanghai, China Tel: +86(021)5428 6005 Fax: +86(021)5428 6005-8002 www.tengrant.com a88888@sina.cn